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Review Report of | ndependent Accountants Translated from Chinese

PWCR10000424

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Gaméaxgital Entertainment Co., Ltd.

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidatechbalaheets of Gamania Digital
Entertainment Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries a®afch 31, 2011 and 2010, and the
related consolidated statements of income andsif flaws for the three-month periods
then ended. These consolidated financial statesnarg the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is toresp a conclusion on these
consolidated financial statements based on oueweyi

Except as explained in the following paragraph, r@wiews were made in accordance
with the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards N, “Review of Financial
Statements” in the Republic of ChinaA review consists principally of inquiries of
company personnel and analytical procedures appieedfinancial data. It is
substantially less in scope than an audit in acard with generally accepted auditing
standards in the Republic of China, the objectifevhich is the expression of an
opinion regarding the financial statements takem aghole. Accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion.

As described in Note 1 (2), the consolidated fimanstatements include unreviewed
financial statements of certain consolidated suasas, which statements reflect total
assets of $1,636,527 thousand and $1,144,223 thdasaof March 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, and total operating revenues of $86Bthousand and $410,000 thousand
for the three-month periods then ended, respegtivdh addition, as explained in Note
4 (8), the consolidated financial statements inellmhg-term investments accounted for
under the equity method amounting to $5,253 thadisamd $4,770 thousand as of
March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and theta@linvestment loss was $1,492
thousand and $1,025 thousand for the three-montiodsethen ended, respectively.
These amounts and the information disclosed in Natevere based on their respective
financial statements which were not reviewed by pehdent accountants.



Based on our reviews, except for the effect of sadjustments, if any, as might have
been determined to be necessary had the finantadénsents of these investee
companies been reviewed by independent accounganexplained in the preceding
paragraph, we are not aware of any material madiéos that should be made to the
consolidated financial statements referred to aliweder for them to be in conformity

with the “Guidelines Governing the Preparation ahadfcial Reports by Securities

Issuers” and generally accepted accounting priesipl the Republic of China.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan

April 21, 2011

The accompanying consolidated financial statemangsnot intended to present the
financial position and results of operations andghcdlows of the Company in
accordance with accounting principles and practysaserally accepted in countries and
jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. eTktandards, procedures and
practices utilized in the Republic of China govamthe review of such consolidated
financial statements may differ from those gengradccepted in countries and
jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. céAuingly, the accompanying
consolidated financial statements and review repbthe independent accountants are
not intended for use by those who are not informledut the accounting principles or
review standards generally accepted in the Repuabli€hina, and their applications in
practice.

As the consolidated financial statements are tlspaesibility of the management,
PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot accept any lialiditthe use of, or reliance on, the
English translation or for any errors or misundangings that may derive from the
translation.



ASSET¢

CurrentAsset:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4 (1))
Financial assets at fair value through profitasst current (Note 4 (2))
Notes receivable third parties- net (Note 4 (3))
Accounts receivable third parties- net (Note 4 (4))
Other receivables
Other financial asse — curren (Note6)
Inventories- net (Note 4 (5))
Prepaid expenses
Deferred income tax assetgurrent (Note 4 (15))
Other current assets

Long-term Investmen

Financial assefat fair value through profit or lo — nor-current(Note ¢ (6))

Financial assets carried at ceston-current (Note 4 (7))

GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

MARCH 31
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)
(UNAUDITED)
2011 2010 2011
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilitie:
$ 1,162,662 $ 1,097,618 Short-term loans (Note 4 (12)) $ 182,100
200,000 - Notes payable third parties 8,102
309,797 70,263 Accounts payable third parties 347,889
1,473,209 1,346,045 Accounts payable — related party (Note 5) 62,332
26,997 38,618 Income tax payable (Note 4 (15)) 53,708
- 2,000 Accrued expens 351,407
68,502 76,712 Other payables third parties 237,692
70,510 39,586 Unearned revenue collected in advance 651,420
1,379 66,551 Current portion of long-term loans (Note 4 (14)) 28,654
6,455 2,939 Deferred income tax liabilities current (Note 4 (15)) 1,645
3,319,511 2,740,332 Other current liabilities 10,582
1,935,531
2,850 - Long-term Liabilities
114,294 114,294 Financial liabilities at fair value through prodit loss— non-current (Note 4 (13)) 3,273

Long-term investment accounted for under the equity method (Note 4 (8)) 5,253

Property, Plant and Equipmenhet (Notes 4 (9) and 6 )
Cos
Land
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Transportation equipment
Office equipment
Leasehold improvemer
Other equipment
Total Cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment
Construction in progress and prepayments for eaei

Intangible Assets
Goodwill

Deferred pension cost (Note 4 (16))
Other intangible assetsnet (Note 4 (10))

Other Assets
Refundable deposits
Deferred charges net (Notes 4 (11) and 5 (2))
Deferred income tax ass — nor-current (Note (15))
Other asset — other (Note 4 (16))

TOTAL ASSETS

122,397

157,066
213,536
790,525

327

158,815
38,996
15,126
1,374,391

( 682,859)
( 4,214)
57,456
744,774

90,132
1,502
6.454

98,088
50,507

471,423
27,468

13,447

562,845

$ 4.847,615

4,770

119,064

147,751
170,495
559,004

226,694
37,838
5,669
1,147,451

610,999)
4,486)

11,568

543,534

76,757
1,332
194

78,283
46,072

605,904
18,254

7,712

671,942

$ 4,159,155

Long-term loans (Note 4 (14))

Other Liabilities
Accrued pension liabilities (Note (16))
Guarantee deposits
Other liabilities— other

Total Liabilities

Stockholders' Equi
Common stock

Common stock (Note 1)

Stock subscriptions received in advance (No@2J)(
Capital reserve (Note 4 (17))

Paid-in capital in excess of par

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipt
Retained earnings

Legal reserve (Notes 4 (18) and (20))

Retained earnings (Notes 4 (19) and (20))
Other adjustments to stockholders’ equity

Cumulative translation adjustments

Unrealized net loss

Treasury stock (Note 4 (21))

Minority interes
Total Stockholders' Equity

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Note 7)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part oethessolidated financial statements.
See review report of independent accountants dgteti21, 2011.
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21,880

25,153

8,750
12
250

9,012

1,969,696

1,657,020
24,263

888,051
221

117,649
527,669

3,551

( 1,126)
( 370,182)
2,847,116
30,803
2,877,919

$ 4,847,615

2010

$ 130,000
10,282
239,834

34,576
330,442
238,194
333,267

21,715

7,738

1,346,048

21,783

21,783

9,429
380
447

10,256

1,378,087

1,604,951
51,425

852,683
221

86,730
503,782

28,358

( 565)
( 370,182)
2,757,403
23,665
2,781,068

$ 4.159,155



GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED MARCH 31,
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

(UNAUDITED)
2011 2010
Operating revenu

Sales revent $ 1,833,711 $ 1,432,219

Sales returr ( 5,799) ( 46,002)

Sales allowanct ( 6,471) ( 9,610)

Net sales reveni 1,821,441 1,376,607

Service revent 27,946 19,280
Operating revent 1,849,387 1,395,887
Operating cos (Notes 4 (23) and5 (2))

Cost of goods solc ( 1,034,761) ( 709,855)
Gross profi 814,626 686,032
Operating expenses (Ns 4 (23) and5 (2))

Selling expens:t ( 179,208) ( 159,002)

General and administrative exper ( 311,468) ( 237,655)

Research and development expe ( 145,210) ( 94,063)

Total operating expens ( 635,886) ( 490,720)
Operating incormr 178,740 195,312
Non-operating incorr

Interest incom 524 267

Foreign exchange g¢ - 1,951

Rental incom 1,990 92

Gain on adjustment ofnancial asse 60 127

Miscellaneous incon 8,277 1,600

Total nor-operating incomr 10,851 4,037
Non-operating expens
Interest expen: ( 784) ( 1,176)
Investment loss accounted for under the equity
methoc (Note < (8)) ( 1,492) ( 1,025)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipi ( 160) ( 5,328)

Foreign exchangloss ( 1,451) -

Miscellaneous loss ( 4,022) ( 33,551)

Total nor-operating expens ( 7,909) ( 41,080)
Income before income te 181,682 158,269
Income tarexpens (Note < (15)) ( 51,962) ( 46,004)
Consolidated net income $ 129,720 $ 112,265
Attributable to

Equity holders of thCompan: $ 129,764 $ 109,841

Minority interes ( 44) 2,424

$ 129,720 $ 112,265
2011 2010
Before After Before After
Earnings per share (in dollars) (Note 4 (20)) income tax  income tax income tax  income tax

Basic earnings per share (in dollars)
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company § 1.18 % 0.84 % 1.03 $ 0.73
Minority interest income - - 0.20 0.20
Consolidated net income $ 1.18  § 0.84 § 1.23 $ 0.93
Diluted earnings per share (in dollars)
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company § 1.15  § 0.82 $ 0.99 $ 0.70
Minority interest income - - 0.20 0.20
Consolidated net income $ 1.15 § 0.82 § 1.19 $ 0.90

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
See review report of independent accountants digpeiti21, 2011.
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GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED MARCH 31,

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

(UNAUDITED)
2011
Cash flows from operating activities
Consolidated net income $ 129,
Adjustments to reconcile consolidated net incomaet cash
(used in) provided by operating activities:
Reversal of allowance (provision) for sales mesu (
Provision for doubtful accounts 4,
Provision for decline in market value of invetds
Investment loss accounted for under the equéthod 1,
Depreciation and amortization 126,
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equigmen
Fixed assets and deferred charges transferrethéo loss 3,
Deferred income tax assets 23,
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo
— current ( 200,
Notes receivable — third parties ( 185,
Accounts receivable — third parties ( 282,
Other receivables — third parties 2,
Inventories ( 39,
Prepaid expenses ( 14,
Other current assets ( 2,
Increase (decrease) in:
Notes payable — third parties 8,
Accounts payable — third parties 110,
Accounts payable — related party 62,
Income tax payable 15,
Other payables — third parties ( 83,
Accrued expenses ( 85,
Unearned revenue collected in advance 334,
Other current liabilities
Accrued pension liabilities (

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

(Continued on next page)

720

784)
784
731
492
449
160
324
570

000)
388)
296)
315

239)
486)
146)

047
631
332
254
212)
604)
039
414
495)

(___ 70.,388)

2010

$ 112,265

436
4,707
1,196
1,025

101,290
5,328
28,214
22,996

42,740
228,736)

609
17,324)
8,842)
293)

226
23,103

21,994
75,102
56,061)
31,806)
51,095)
764

47,838



GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED MARCH 31,

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

(UNAUDITED)

Cash flows from investing activities
Increase in minority interest acquisition price
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Increase in deferred charges
(Increase) decrease in refundable deposits
Increase in other assets — other

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Increase (decrease) in short-term loans
Decrease in long-term loans (including currentipa)
(Increase) decrease in other liabilities — other
Increase in guarantee deposits
Exercise of employee stock options
Changes in minority interest
Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbatants
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gherio
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest

Income tax

Cash paid for acquisition of property, plant andipment
Property, plant and equipment acquired
Payable at end of the period
Payable at beginning of period
Cash paid

(

2011 2010
$ - ($ 38,337)
80,098) ( 39,027)
42,527) ( 53,161)
2,310) 1,018
4,643) ( 345)
129,578) ( 129,852)
27,118 ( 15,553)
8,175)  ( 6,495)
502) 6
6 -
43,746 102,356
971 1,265
63,164 81,579
40,784 ( 6.,958)
96,018) ( 7,393)
1,258,680 1,105,011
$ 1,162,662 $ 1,097,618
855 $ 1,135
$ 1,553 $ 880
$ 60,206 $ 42,559
17,837) ( 14,031)
37,729 10.499
$ 80,098 $ 39,027

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.

See review report of independent accountants digeiti21, 2011.



GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2011 AND 2010
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS,
EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE INDICATED)
(UNAUDITED)
1. HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION

(1) Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. (the Compamas incorporated in June 1995
under the provisions of the Company Law of the Rdépuof China (R.O.C.) as a
company limited by shares. As of March 31, 20k total authorized capital was
$2,500,000, consisting of 250 million shares of own stock (including 22 million
shares for employee stock options), at a par vafl$10 (NT dollars) per share, and the
issued and outstanding capital was $1,657,020. Gdmapany is engaged in software
services. As of March 31, 2011, the Company asccdnsolidated subsidiaries had
approximately 1,670 employees.

(2) Consolidated subsidiaries

A)
% of shares held as
of March 31,
Name of company Relationship Main activities 2011 2010

Gamania Holdings Ltd. Note 1 Investment holdinghpany 100% 100%

Gamania International Holdings Note 2 Investment holdings 100% 100%
Ltd.

Gamania Digital Entertainment Note 3 Design and sales of software; 100% 100%
(Japan) Co., Ltd. sales of hardware

Gamania China Holdings Ltd. Note 3 Investment imysl 98.37% 97.91%

Gamania Western Holdings Ltd. Note 3 Investment holdings 100% 100%

Gamania Netherlands Holdin Note 3 Investment holdings 100% -
Cooperatief U.A.

Firedog Studio Company Ltd. Note 3 Design and research and 100% -

development of software

Gash Plus (Hong Kong) Note 3 Software and electronic Note 9 -
Company Ltd. information services and sales

Gamania Digital Entertainment Note 4 Design and sales of software 98.379897.91%
(H.K.) Co., Ltd.

Gamania Sino Holdings Ltd. Note 4 Investment holdings 98.37% 97.91%

Gamania Digital Entertainment Note 5 Design and sales of software  100% -
(Europe) B.V.

Gamania Digital Entertainment  Note 6 Design and sales of software 100% 100%
(U.S)) Co., Ltd.



% of shares held as

of March 31,
Name of company Relationship Main activities 2011 2010
Gamania Digital Entertainment Note 7 Design and sales of software 98.37997.91%

(Beijing) Co., Ltd.
Gameastor Digital Entertainme  Note 1 Software services and sales 99.28% 99.28%
Co., Ltd. (Note 8)

Gamania Asia Investment€o., Note 1l Investment holdings 100% 100%
Ltd.
Gamania Korea Ltd. Note 1 Design and sales oivsoé 100% 100%
Fantasy Fish DigitalGames Co Note 1 Design and research and 99.69% 99.50%
Ltd. development of software
Fundation Digital Entertainment Note 1 Sales and publishing of 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. magazines and
periodicals
Gamania Digital Entertainment Note 1 Investment holdings 100% 100%
Labuan Holdings, Ltd.
Redgate Games Co., Ltd. Note 1 Design and researth 100% 100%
development of software
Seedo Games Co., Ltd. Note 1 Design and reseatth an 100% 100%
development of software
Playcoo Co. Note 1 Design and research and 75.25% 75.25%
development of software
Two Tigers Co., Ltd. Note 1 Animation production %1 -
Gash Plus Co., Ltd. Note 1 Software and electronic 100% -

information services and sales
Note 1: Majority-owned subsidiary
Note 2: A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania Hiog$ Ltd.
Note 3: A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania intgional Holdings Ltd.
Note 4: A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania Ghioldings Ltd.
Note 5: A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania Nethnds Holdings Cooperatief U.A.
Note 6: A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania VéestHoldings Ltd.
Note 7: A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania Staldings Ltd.
Note 8: Gameastor Digital Entertainment Co., Ltibrmerly Taiwan Index Co., Ltd., has
completed its change of registration in Septemban2
Note 9: As of March 31, 2011, the Company has matsted in the subsidiary.

B) The consolidated financial statements includeeviewed financial statements of
certain consolidated subsidiaries as of March 8112and 2010, respectively. The
statements reflect total assets of $1,636,527 dntii4,223 as of March 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively, and total operating reverafe$368,717 and $410,000 for
the three-month periods then ended, respectively.



(3) Changes in the consolidated subsidiaries:
No subsidiary was deconsolidated from the codat#dd financial statements during the
three-month period ended March 31, 2011. The votlg were majority-owned

subsidiaries that were newly included in the consbéd financial statements:
% of shares held as

of March 31,

Name of company  Relationship Main activities 2011 2010 _Note
Two Tigers Co., Ltd. Note 1 Animation production %1 - Note 5
Gash Plus Co., Ltd. Note 1 Software and electronid00% - Note 4

information services and
sales
Firedog Studio Note 2 Design and research of 100% - Note 5
Company Ltd. software
Gash Plus (Hong Kong)  Note 2 Software and electronic Note 7 - Note 4
Company Ltd. information services and
sales
Gamania Netherlands Note 2 Investment holdings 100% - Note 6
Holdings Cooperatief
U.A.
Gamania Digital Note 3 Software services and 100% - Note 6
Entertainment sales

(Europe) B.V.
Note 1: Majority-owned subsidiary.
Note 2: A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania tntgional Holdings Ltd.
Note 3: A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania Nethnds Holdings Cooperatief U.A.
Note 4: The Company was established in the firartgn of 2011.
Note 5: The Company was established in the fourtirtgr of 2010.
Note 6: The Company was established in the thiedtgu of 2010.
Note 7: As of March 31, 2011, the Company has matsted in the subsidiary.

(4) Majority-owned subsidiaries not being consaidia None.

(5) Difference in accounting period among the Conypand the subsidiaries: None.

(6) Difference in the accounting policies adoptetbag the Company and the subsidiaries:
None.

(7) Special operation risk of foreign subsidiaridsne.

(8) Nature and extent of the restrictions on fuadhittance from subsidiaries to the parent
company: None.

(9) The Company’s and its subsidiaries’ earningsrithutions are restricted by enactment or
contract: None.

(10) The subsidiaries hold the Company’s stocklzomtis: None.



(11) Convertible bonds and new stocks are issudtidgubsidiaries: None.
(12) Other consequential items to the consolidateahcial statements: None.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of the Compamd its subsidiaries (collectively

referred herein as the Group) are prepared in conitp with the “Guidelines Governing the

Preparation of Financial Reports by Securitiesdssuand generally accepted accounting

principles in the Republic of China. The signifitaccounting policies of the Group are

summarized below:

(1) Principles of consolidation

A) All majority-owned subsidiaries or controlledtiies, which meet the criteria of the

amended Statement of Financial Accounting Standaids 7 “Consolidated
Financial Statements”, are included in the constdéd financial statements.
Effective January 1, 2008, the Company preparestenya consolidated financial

statements.
B) The results of operations of a subsidiary arduithed in the consolidated financial

statements from the date of acquisition. Under dheended SFAS No. 7, the
results of operations of such subsidiary are exdudrom the consolidated
statements of income effective the date on whiehGbmpany loses control over the
subsidiary. For the initial year of adoption of & No. 7, restatement of prior
year’s financial statements is not required.
C) All significant intercompany balances and transaxti are eliminated in the
consolidation.
(2) Translation of financial statements of foregyubsidiaries
Assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiareee translated into New Taiwan dollars
using the exchange rate at the balance sheet éatéty accounts are translated at
historical rates, except for beginning retainechieays which is transferred from prior
year's ending retained earnings, and profit and lascounts are translated using
weighted-average rate. Exchange differences arerded as cumulative translation
adjustments and are included as a component défsitmters' equity.
(3) Foreign currency transactions
The accounts of the Company and its subsidiaresmaintained in New Taiwan dollars
and functional currencies, respectively. Transastiarising in foreign currencies are
translated into New Taiwan dollars and functionatrencies at the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Manyeassets and liabilities denominated




in foreign currencies are translated into New Taiwdbollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Foreignangh gains or losses are included in
the current period’s results of operations.
(4) Criteria for classifying current or non-curressets and liabilities
A) Assets that meet one of the following criteriee alassified as current assets;
otherwise they are classified as non-current assets

a) Assets arising from operating activities that arsgeeted to be realized or
consumed, or are intended to be sold within thenaboperating cycle;

b) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;

c) Assets that are expected to be realized within daths from the balance sheet
date; and

d) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restrictetl easl cash equivalents and
those that are to be exchanged and used to pdiglafities more than 12 months
after the balance sheet date.

B) Liabilities that meet one of the following criie are classified as current liabilities;
otherwise they are classified as non-current s

a) Liabilities arising from operating activities thate expected to be paid within the
normal operating cycle;

b) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;

c) Liabilities that are to be paid within 12 montharfr the balance sheet date; and

d) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannoteéxdended unconditionally to
more than 12 months after the balance sheet date.

(5) Financial assets at fair value through prafiloss

A) Financial assets at fair value through profit @slare recognized as of the trade date
at fair value for equity stocks. Financial assgtiir value through profit or loss are
recognized as of the settlement date at fair vidubonds and beneficiary certificates.

B) These financial instruments are subsequently remnedsind stated at fair value, and
the gain or loss is recognized in profit or los3he fair value of listed stocks, closed-
end mutual funds and depositary receipts is baseldtest quoted fair prices of the
accounting period. The fair value of open-end rautunds is based on the net asset
value at the balance sheet date.

C) Financial instruments that meet one of the follayicriteria are designated as
financial assets or financial liabilities at faalue through profit or loss:
a) The instrument is a hybrid instrument.
b) The instrument is designated as a financialtasskability at fair value through




profit or loss in order to eliminate or substaryialeduce the inconsistency in

accounting measurement or recognition.
c) The instrument is managed in accordance withGbmpany's documented risk

management and investment strategies, and itsrpefe is evaluated on a fair
value basis.

(6) Financial assets carried at cost
A) Investments in unlisted equity instruments are gacxed initially at its fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributablthtoacquisition of the financial asset.
B) If there is any objective evidence that the finahaisset is impaired, the impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss. Such impa&nnloss cannot be reversed.

(7) Notes and accounts receivable and other reloieisa
Receivables arising from the sale of goods or sesvio customers are recognized as
notes and accounts receivable. Other receivabteshase arising from transactions
other than sale of goods or services.
The Company measures notes and accounts recematilether receivables based on
the aging and collectibility of receivables andtpagerience of bad debts.
Effective January 1, 2011, notes and accounts valls and other receivables are
initially recognized based on estimated fair valaeg are subsequently assessed for the
amount of amortization under effective interese natethod and any impairment. The
Company assesses whether objective evidence ofirrmgrat exists individually for
financial assets at the balance sheet date. Owceljective evidence of impairment
exists, an impairment loss is recognized. The arobtiimpairment is the difference
between the book value of financial assets andlifeunted value of future cash flows
which is estimated using the effective interesg¢.ratf the fair value of the receivables
subsequently increases and the increase can betieblyge related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized, the impant loss shall be reversed to the
extent of the loss previously recognized.

(8) Inventories
The Group uses the perpetual inventory system lamdriginal cost is the cost to obtain
the assets. Cost is determined using the weigihtecage method. The ending
balance of inventory is valued at the lower of costnet realizable value based on
specific identification. The net realizable value is determined based orestienated
selling price of an inventory item less the estmedatosts of completion.
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(9) Long-term equity investments accounted for wride equity method

A)

B)

C)

D)

Long-term equity investments in which the Groupdsomore than 20% of the
investee company'’s voting shares or has the alidigxercise significant influence
on the investee’s operational decisions are acedufar under the equity method.
The excess of the initial investment cost over dbhquired net asset value of the
investee attributable to goodwill is no longer atized and carries on tests of
impairment every tear. Retrospective adjustmentthaf amount of goodwill
amortized in previous years is not required.

Investment loss on the non-controlled entities avieich the Group has the ability
to exercise significant influence is recognizedh® extent that the amount of long-
term investments in such investees is written dowrero. However, if the Group
continues to provide endorsements, guarantees nandial support for such
investees, the investment loss is recognized cootisly in proportion to the
Group’s equity interest in such investees. In ¢hse of controlled entities, the
Group recognizes all the losses incurred by sutitieenthat will not be covered by
other stockholders. When the operations of sugbsitees become profitable, the
Group recognizes the profits until the amount &fsks previously recognized by
the Group is fully recovered.

Exchange differences arising from translation oé tfinancial statements of
overseas investee companies accounted for undeqthy method are recorded as
“cumulative translation adjustments” under stockleols equity and recognized in
proportion to the percentage of shares hgithe Group.

The capital reserve and long-term investment ansoarg adjusted by the variance
between the investment cost and net assets of niestee due to the
disproportionate acquisition or decrease of sharesonnection with the capital
increase or decrease by the investee companyhelbalance of capital reserve
from long-term investment is not sufficient, themtained earnings is debited.

(10) Property, plant and equipment

A)

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line melthigsing the estimated useful lives
of the assets plus one year as salvage value. sUlvgdiaries’ property, plant and
equipment are depreciated on a straight-line kasisrding to the estimated useful
lives of the assets less the estimated salvageeyvadxcept for leasehold
improvements, which are based on the contract gpavfoasset. The estimated
useful lives are 3 to 55 years for buildings antb % years for the other property,
plant and equipment.



B) When an asset is sold or retired, the cost andnaglated depreciation are removed
from the respective accounts and the resulting gailoss is included in current
non-operating income (expense).

C) Major renewals or betterments are capitalized amgbretiated accordingly.
Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.

(11) Deferred charges
A) Costs of software and copyrights are capitalizetiaamnortized under the straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives.
B) Royalty payments for operating online game softveaieecapitalized and amortized
based on the period of the contract or deducteedoas actual units of play.
(12) Other intangible assets
A) Franchises for game development are recordeacauisition cost and amortized
using the straight-line method over the estimatdise life. Franchises could be
deducted from franchises payable amounting to 28édan sales revenues.
B) Franchises for sales of on-line games are recbad acquisition cost and amortized
over the estimated life of 3 years using the shtalime method.
C) Comic copyright is recorded at acquisition csti amortized over the estimated life
of 1 year using the straight-line method.

(13) Impairment of non-financial assets

A) Impairment loss is recognized when the recoMeramount of an asset is less than
the book value due to changes in environment ouroences of some events.
Recoverable amount is the higher of net fair valugalue in use of an asset. Net
fair value is the selling price of an asset in am’s-length transaction between
knowledgeable and willing parties, less the co$tdigposal. Value in use is the
present value of the future cash flows expectdsktderived from an asset.

B) If there is an indication that an asset hasverd its value of the impairment loss
recognized in the prior period, a gain is recogiitte the extent of the impairment
loss recognized. No recovery of impairment loset®gnized for goodwill.

(14) Share-based paymemmployee compensation plan
A) The employee stock options granted from Jandar2004 through December 31,
2007 are accounted for in accordance with EITF BQ-&EITF 92-071 and EITF 92-
072 “Accounting for Employee Stock Options” as présed by the Accounting
Research and Development Foundation, R.O.C., ddsedh 17, 2003. Under the
share-based employee compensation plan, compemsasbis recognized using the
intrinsic value method and pro forma disclosuresef income and earnings per




share are prepared in accordance with the R.O.8SSFo. 39, “Accounting for
Share-based Payment”.

B) For the grant date of the share-based paymegeagnts set on or after January 1,
2008, the Company shall measure the services exteiuring the vesting period by
reference to the fair value of the equity instrutsegranted and account for those
amounts as payroll expenses during that period.

(15) Employees’ bonuses and directors’ and supany/isemuneration

Effective January 1, 2008, pursuant to EITF 96-052he Accounting Research and
Development Foundation, R.O.C., dated March 16,7208ccounting for Employees’
Bonuses and Directors’ and Supervisors’ Remuneratithe costs of employees’
bonuses and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneratie accounted for as expenses and
liabilities, provided that such recognition is reed under legal or constructive
obligation and the amounts can be estimated rebsonaHowever, if the accrued
amounts for employees’ bonuses and directors’ amgkrsisors’ remuneration are
significantly different from the actual distribut@snounts resolved by the stockholders
at their annual stockholders’ meeting subsequettily,differences shall be recognized
as gain or loss in the following year. In additi@tcording to EITF 97-127 of the
Accounting Research and Development Foundation,@,Qlated March 31, 2008,
“Criteria for Listed Companies in Calculating theurNber of Shares of Employees’
Stock Bonus”, the Company calculates the numbehafes of employees’ stock bonus
based on the closing price of the Company’s comstook at the previous day of the
stockholders’ meeting held in the year following tiinancial reporting year, and after
taking into account the effects of ex-rights anetlexdends.

(16) Deferred income tax assets and income tax

A) Income tax of the Company and its domestic subsgdiaare provided based on
accounting income after adjusting for permanentetkhces. The provision for
income tax includes deferred income tax resultimognfitems reported in different
periods for tax and financial reporting purposeBeferred income tax assets or
liabilities are further classified into current amdén-current items based on the
classifications of the related assets or liabditoe on the expected reversal date of
the temporary differences and are presented onfitla@cial statements at net
amount. Valuation allowance on deferred incomedssets is recognized to the
extent that it is more likely than not that the beenefits will not be realized.

B) Tax credits resulting from research and developregpenditures of the Company




C)

D)

E)

F)

and its domestic subsidiaries are recognized a®mumcome tax benefit when
incurred.

Over or under provision of prior years' income tebilities is included in the
current year's income tax expense.

The Company’s overseas subsidiaries’ income taxessabject to their local
regulations.

In accordance with the Taiwan imputation tax systamy undistributed current
earnings of a company derived on or after Januarl9B8 is subject to an
additional 10% corporate income tax if the earniags not distributed before a
specific time. This 10% additional corporate in@otax is recorded as income tax
expense in the period the stockholders approveautgon to retain the earnings.

In accordance with théincome Basic Tax Act”, effective January 1, 200Gew
income tax is lower than the basic tax, incomediae shall be equal to the basic tax.

G) When a change in the tax laws is enacted, the réefdax liability or asset is

recomputed accordingly in the period of change. e difference between the new
amount and the original amount, that is, the eftdcthanges in the deferred tax
liability or asset, is reported as an adjustmentctiorent income tax expense
(benefit).

(17) Retirement plan

A)

B)

Under the defined benefit pension plan, net pecipdinsion costs are recognized in
accordance with the actuarial calculations. Thepeeiodic pension costs include
service cost, interest costypected return on plan assets, unrecognizedareition
obligation and amortization of gains or losses tanssets. Unrecognized net
transition obligation is amortized on a straigimelibasis over 15 years. Minimum
pension liabilities in the interim financial statents are adjusted in accordance with
the net periodic pension cost and funds contributed

Under the defined contribution pension plan, netigoéc pension costs are
recognized as incurred.

(18) Treasury stock

A)

B)

Treasury stocks acquired are stated at cost ubmgveighted-average method and
reported as a deduction from stockholders’ equitthe balance sheet.

Upon disposal, the related gain is credited to ftehpreserve-treasury stock

transaction” and any loss is offset against thisitahreserve account. However,

when the balance of this capital reserve accounsigficient to offset the loss, then

the remaining amount is charged against retainedress.



C) Upon registration of cancellation, except for tlwlk value sum of “common stock”
and “capital reserve-additional paid-in”, whichimsproportion to shareholding, the
related gain is credited to “capital reserve-treastock transaction” and any loss is
offset against this capital reserve account. Ha@wmewhen the balance of this
capital reserve account is insufficient to off$et koss, then the remaining amount is
charged against retained earnings.

(19) Revenues, costs and expenses

A) Costs from the development of software for saleracegnized as research expense
before establishing technical feasibility.

B) Revenue from prepaid cards for on-line games isrded and is recognized based
on points consumed.

C) Revenue from software and other merchandise isgrezed when they are
delivered.

D) Sales returns are estimated based on a perceritagies.

E) Costs and expenses are recognized as incurred.

F) Commissions received on prepaid cards from tharengame providers is deferred
and recognized as revenue when services are rehdere

(20) Earnings per share

A) The computation of earnings per share is agvt
Basic earnings per share: net income divided bywhighted-average number of
shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share: the computation issree as basic earnings gaare,
except that the potential dilutive shares are assuto have been converted to
common stock at the beginning of the period andimedsme is adjusted by the
amount associated with the conversion.

B) The potential dilutive shares are employee stopions and estimated shares of
employees’ bonuses when distributing stock. Then@any adopted the “treasury
stock method” in computing the dilutive effect dietemployee stock options and
the employees’ bonuses.

(21) Use of estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statesant conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires managententmake estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts @tassd liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effthancial statements, and the amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting gheridctual results could differ from
those estimates.



(22) Operating segments
The Company discloses the segment information icoraance with the internal
management report provided to the chief operatiegsibn-maker. The Company’s
chief operating decision-maker is the chief exeeubfficer, who distributes resources
and assesses performance.
Effective January 1, 2011, in accordance with tketeBnent of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 41, “Operating Segments”, the Compdisgloses the segment
information in the consolidated financial statenseawhd not in the stand-alone financial
statements.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

(1) Notes and accounts receivable, other receigable
Effective January 1, 2011, the Company and its dmimesubsidiaries adopted the
amended Statement of Financial Accounting Standsds34, “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”. Under the amendetlatd, if there is any objective
evidence that the notes and accounts receivaliley oeceivables and other rights of
credit are impaired, an impairment loss (or pransifor doubtful accounts) is
recognized immediately. The adoption of this ragah had no significant effect on
the financial statements as of and for the threatmperiod ended March 31, 2011.

(2) Operating segments
Effective January 1, 2011, the Company and its dicsubsidiaries adopted the newly
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Stand&lds41, “Operating Segments” to
replace Statement of Financial Accounting Stand#@tds 20, “Segment Reporting”.
The Company has restated the segment informatioh asd for the three-month period
ended March 31, 2010 in accordance with the standarhe adoption of this regulation
had no effect on the consolidated net income amiregs per share for the three-month
periods ended March 31, 2011 and 2010.

4. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

March 31,
2011 2010
Cash on hand $ 1,181  $ 729
Cash in banks 801,047 740,484
Time deposits 360,434 356,405

$ 1,162,662 § 1,097,618
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(2) Einancial assets at fair value through prafilogs- current
ltems March 31,
2011 2010

Financial assets at fair value through profit
loss-current
Bond fund $ 200,000 $
Adjustment of designated as at fair ve
through profit or loss

$ 200,000  $

(3) Notes receivablenet

March 31,
2011 2010
Notes receivab $ 309,813 $ 70,279
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts ( 16) ( 16)

$ 309,797  $ 70,263

(4) Accounts receivablenet

March 31,
2011 2010
Accounts receivable § 1.573.764 § 1.432.949
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts ( 96,838) ( 81,492)
Allowance for sales returns ( 3,717) ( 5,412)

$ 1.473.209 § 1.346.045

(5) Inventories net

March 31,
2011 2010
Inventories $ 75,404  § 90,548
Less: Allowance for obsolescence and market
value declin ( 6,902) ( 13,836)

$ 68.502 § 76,712

Related loss recognized for the period:

For the threeemonth period ende«Marcl 31,
2011 2010

Provision for decline in market
value of inventories $ 731 $ 1,196




(6) Financial assets at fair value through prafikogs- non-current
March 31,
ltems 2011 2010
Designated as at financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss:
Callable preferred stock $ 2,850 § -
Adjustment of designated as at -
value through profit or loss

$ 2,850 $ -
For business operation purposes, the Company’s stam&ubsidiary, Gamania
Asia Investment Co., Ltd., invested 285 thousarateshat a par value of $10 (NT
dollars) per share in the amount of $2,850. Suekdtment is not entitled to a
voting right, profit distribution right and the hgto claim for remaining property.
According to the investment contract, both paragseed that during the thirty
days from the repurchase base day, which is aexpeation of three years of
settling date or other documents’ appointment datejnvestor can ask the issuer
to redeem all of the preferred stock based onvilire at the repurchase base day.
If the fair value will be lower than the publishedce, the issuer will have to
repurchase based on the issue price. In accordaitbethe contents of the
preferred stock contract and Statement of Finaaabunting Standards No. 34,
“Accounting for Financial Instruments: Recognitiaand Measurement”, the
subsidiary is accounted for as Financial assdtratalue through profit or loss.

(7) Financial assets carried at cost

March 31,
ltems 2011 2010
Unlisted stocks
Nice Finance Co., Ltd. $ 01,453 % 91,453
NC Taiwan Co., Ltd. 22,841 22,841

$ 114,294 § 114,294
The above investments were measured at cost sieaefair value cannot be measured
reliably.




(8) Long-term investment accounted for under thétgagnethod

A) Details of long-term investment

March 31, 2011 Investment loss for
the three-month
Ownership period ended
Name of investee Original cost percentage Balance March 31, 2011
Accounted for under the
equity method
Taiwan e-sports Co_, Ltd. $ 322000 37 . 65% $ 5 s 253 ($ 1 ,492)
March 31, 2010 Investment loss for
the three-month
Ownership period ended
Name of investee Original cost percentage Balance March 31, 2010

Accounted for under the
equity method
Taiwan e-sports Co., Ltd. $__30.000 46.15% $ 4770 (§ 1,025)
B) Long-term investment accounted for under the equigyhod in Taiwan e-sports Co.,
Ltd. was based on the investee’s financial statésnas of and for the three-month
periods ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 which weteewewed by independent

accountants.




(9) Property, plant and equipment

Cost

Land

Buildings

Machinery and equipment
Transportation equipment
Office equipment
Leasehold improvements
Other equipment

Accumulated depreciation
Buildings

Machinery and equipment
Transportation equipment
Office equipment
Leasehold improvements
Other equipment

Add: Construction in progress and
prepayments for equipment
Less: Accumulated impairment

Book value

(10) Other intangible assets

Franchises for sales of on-line games

Comic copyright
Prepayments for franchise

(11) Deferred charges

Royalty payments
Unamortized expense

AN AN AN AN AN AN~

March 31,

2011 2010
157,066 $ 147,751
213,536 170,495
790,525 559,004

327 -
158,815 226,694
38,996 37,838
15,126 5,669
374,391 1,147,451
41,751) ( 26,077)
507,208)  ( 397,611)
93) -

108,334) ¢ 150,420)
18,869)  ( 33,978)
6,604) ( 2,913)

682,859)  ( 610,999)

57,456 11,568

4,214) ( 4,486)

744,774 $ 543,534
March 31,

2011 2010
5,069 $ 194
1,262

123 -
6,454 $ 194
March 31,

2011 2010
241,541 $ 376,848
229,882 229,056
471,423 $ 605,904




(12) Short-term loans

Marct 31,
2011 2010
Short-term bank loans $ 182,100 $ 130,000
Annual interest rate 1.10%~6.44% 1.37%~2.36%
Credit lines $ 2,656,268 $ 989,000
(13) Financial liabilities at fair value throughofit or loss — non-current
Marcl 31,
ltems 2011 2010
Designated as at financial liabilities at -
value through profit or loss:
Callable preferred stock liability $ 2,850 $ -
Adjustment of designated as at fair ve
through profit or loss 423 -

$ 3,273 $ -

For business operation purposes, the Company’'s stam&ubsidiary, Gameastor
Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd., formerly Taiwandiex Co., Ltd., issued 285
thousand shares of preferred stock at a par vdl#&0(NT dollars) per share in the
amount of $2,850 which was approved by the Boar®ioéctors on March 30,
2010. At the expiration of three years from issigadate, if the fair value of the
preferred stock is higher than the appointed basee,p Gameastor Digital
Entertainment Co., Ltd. can request for the redenpif the stock based on the fair
value, otherwise it will have to redeem the stoakdd on the appointed base price.
In accordance with the preferred stock contract &tdtement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 34, “Accounting for Finahénstruments: Recognition
and Measurement”, Gameastor Digital Entertainment Ctd. accounted for the
preferred stock in “Financial liabilities at faialie through profit or loss”.



(14) Long-term loans

Total Period/Terms Marct 31,
Bank Credit Line of Repayment 2011 2010

Sumitomo Mitsui JPY 90,00009.24.2008 ~ 09.23.2011

Banking Corporation  (Note) equal quarterly installments § 10,955 §$ 15,121
Sumitomo Mitsui JPY 100,00008.31.2009 ~ 08.31.2013

Banking Corporation  (Note)  equal quarterly installments 15,027 28,377
Sumitomo Mitsui JPY 60,00009.01.2010 ~ 08.31.2013

Banking Corporation  (Note) equal quarterly installments 24,552 -

50,534 43,498

Less: Current portion (_28.,654) (_21.,715)
$ 21,880 $ 21,783

Note: Thousands of yen.

(15) Income tax payable

A) Income tax payable and income tax expense for ltheetmonth periods ended

March 31, 2011 and 2010 are reconciled as follows:

For the thre-month
period: endecMarcl 31,

2011 2010
Current year income tax expense $ 49,415 $ 37,976
Additional 10% corporate income tax on
undistributed earnings 2,547 8,028
51,962 46,004
Add (Less): Net change in deferred income
tax assets ( 23,570) ( 22,996)
Prepaid income tax ( 141) «( 13)
Under provision of prior year’s
income tax ( 649) -
Income tax payable of prior
year 26,073 11,680
Withholding tax by the foreign
government - ( 60)
Effect of exchange rate ( 1) ( 39)
$ 53,674 $ 34,576
Income tax payable $ 53,708 $ 34,576
Income tax refundable
(recognized as “other receivables”) ( 34) -
$ 53,674 $ 34,576




B) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arelgvis:

Marct 31,
2011 2010
Deferred income tax assets — current  § 20,620 $ 67,659
Deferred income tax assets — non-current 227,322 248,781
247,942 316,440
Less: Valuation allowance — current  ( 20,886) ( 1,108)
Valuation allowance — non-current( 199,854) ( 230,527)
$ 27,202 $ 84,805
C) The temporary differences and related income teecesf are as follows:
Marct 31,
2011 2010
Amount  Tax effec Amount Tax effec
Current items
Allowance for sales retur $ 3,717 $ 632 $ 4,956 $ 991
Allowance for decline in market
value and inventory
obsolescent 6,223 1,058 12,865 2,573
Loss carryforwarc 112,865 19,187 - -
Other: 6,029 1,025 -
Investment tax crecs 363 64,095
22,265 67,659
Less: Valuation allowan: (__20,886) (__1,108)
Deferred income tax assets
—curren 1,379 66,551
Depreciation allowances in exc
of related depreciation
(recognized as Deferred inco
tax liabilities— curren) ( 9,969) (__1,645) -
($ 266) $ 66,551
Non-current items
Investment loss on financial assets
carried at co'— nor-curren $ 9,851 $ 1,675 § 9,851 $ 1,970
Reserve for foreign investme  ( 10,832) (  1,842) (  31,529) (  6,306)
Loss on foreign investmel 161,002 27,370 80,036 16,007
Depreciation allowance in exce
of related depreciatic - - ( 17,489) (  2,885)
Losscarryforward 705,725 119,973 719,075 143,814
Other: 12,304 2,091 114 23
Investment tax crecs 78,055 96,158
227,322 248,781
Less: Valuation allowance (_199.854) (_230,527)
$ 27,468 $ 18,254
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As of March 31, 2011 and 2010, the balance of $ludders account of deductible tax

was as follows:
March 31,

2011 2010

a. Balance of shareholders account of
deductible tax $ 15,544  §$ 16,983

2010 (Budgeted) 2009 (Actual)
b. Creditable tax ratio 10.43% 6.49%

D) Undistributed retained earnings:

March 31,
2011 2010
On or after January 1, 1998
a. Earnings not yet subjected to 10%
income tax $ 129,764 $ 109,841
b. Earnings subjected to 10%
income tax 397,905 393,941

$ 527,669 $ 503,782

F) The Company’s assessed and approved income tarsetre as follows:

a) As of March 31, 2011, the Compasyincome tax returns through 2008 have
been assessed and approved by the Tax Authority.

b) The Tax Authority imposed additional tax amongtito $23,481 on the
Company’s 2002 income tax return after the re-eration. The Company
filed a petition in January 2011, which is stilinging as of the report date.

c) The Tax Authority imposed additional tax amongtito $3,958 on the
Company’s 2003 income tax return after the re-eration. The Company
filed a petition in November 2010, which is stiémqling as of the report date.
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G) As of March 31, 2011, according to the “Statute fggrading Industries”, the
Company’s domestic subsidiaries had investment dedits in the amount of
$78,418 to offset against taxable income for the few years. The details are as

follows:
Year of
Deductible item Total credits Unused balance _expiration
Research and development
expenditures $ 75,131 $ 75,131 2011~2013
Machinery and equipment 3,287 3,287 2011~2013

$ 78,418 $ 78,418
H) As of March 31, 2011, in accordance with the “Ineofirex Law”, the Companys
domestic subsidiaries had loss carryforwards inaimount of $139,160 to offset
against taxable income for the next few years. ddtails are as follows:

Year of
Deductible item Amount reported Total credits Unused balance _expiration
Loss carryforwards  § 818,589 § 139,160 $ 139,160  2013~2021

(16) Accrued pension liability

A) The Company and its domestic subsidiaries havenacanotributory and funded
defined benefit pension plan in accordance withLiddeor Standards Law, covering
all regular employees before the implementatiothefLabor Pension Act on July 1,
2005. Under the defined benefit plan, two units accrued for each year of
service for the first 15 years and one unit forheadditional year thereafter with a
maximum of 45 units. Retirement benefits are bagedthe number of units
accrued and the average monthly salaries and wigas last six months prior to
retirement. The Company and its domestic subsediacontribute monthly an
amount equal to 2% of the employees’ monthly sadagaind wages to the retirement
fund deposited with Bank of Taiwan under the narnthe independent retirement
fund committee. The balance of the retirement falegosited with Bank of
Taiwan was $44,688 and $43,863 as of March 31, 201l 2010, respectively.
For the three-month periods ended March 31, 201l 210, net pension costs
recognized by the Company and its domestic subbgdiander the defined benefit
plan amounted to $981 and $527, respectively. filmel balances are not
reflected in the consolidated financial statemeniBhe accumulated contributions
exceeded the net pension costs in the amount 82$%nd $7,507 as of March 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively, which was accountethfother assets — other.

B) Gamania Digital Entertainment (Japan) Co., Ltd.,m@aia Korea Co., Ltd.,
Gamania Digital Entertainment (H.K.) Co., Ltd. aridedog Studio Company Ltd.
provide pension reserves annually for their empgyi® accordance with the local




regulations. The net pension costs were $1,179 &b for the three-month
periods ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively

C) Gamania Digital Entertainment (Beijing) Co., Ltdopides an old-age pension and
insurance monthly based on 20~22% of the employsakiries and wages in
accordance with the local regulations. The nesjmnand insurance costs were
$1,719 and $913 for the three-month periods endedciv31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

D) Effective July 1, 2005, in accordance with the LraBension Act, the Company and
its domestic subsidiaries adopted a defined cawttab pension plan (the “New
Plan”). Under the New Plan, employees have th®wogb choose the New Plan
and the Company and its domestic subsidiaries ibomgr monthly an amount based
on 6% of the employees’ monthly salaries and wageke employees’ individual
pension accounts deposited with the Bureau of Latmurrance. Benefits accrued
under the New Plan are portable when the emplogee® the company. The net
pension costs recognized by the Company and itsegtiensubsidiaries under the
defined contribution plan amounted to $9,221 ancdD®8 for the three-month
periods ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively

E) Gamania Holdings Ltd., Gamania Asia Investment Q¢d., Gamania Digital
Entertainment Labuan Holdings, Ltd., Gamania Iragomal Holdings Ltd.,
Gamania China Holdings Ltd., Gamania Western Hgldibtd., Gamania
Netherlands Holdings Cooperatief U.A., Gamania @igentertainment (U.S.) Co.,
Ltd., Gamania Digital Entertainment (Europe) B.WwdaGash Plus (Hong Kong)
Company Ltd. do not have an employee retirememt. pla

(17) Capital reserve

Share premiums from the issuance of new sharesdandtions may be used to

increase capital stock if the Company has surpiugtained earnings. The amount

that can be transferred to capital stock each igedéimited to 10% of this balance.

Other capital reserves can only be used to coeeatibumulated deficit when the legal

reserve is insufficient to cover the accumulateficde

(18) Legal reserve
Pursuant to the R.O.C. Company Law, 10% of the ahatfter-tax net income of the

Company, after covering accumulated losses, musippeopriated as legal reserve
until its total amount equals the issued capitatist Legal reserve can only be used
to cover accumulated losses or to increase capitagal reserve can be used to
increase capital only if the accumulated amourlegél reserve is more than 50% of



paid-in capital, and the amount is limited to 50fit®balance.

(19) Retained earnings

A) As stipulated in the Company’s Articles of Incoration, the current earnings, if
any, shall be distributed in the following order:

B)

a.
b.
C.

Paying all taxes and duties.

Covering prior years’ accumulated deficit, if any.

After deducting items a and b, 10% of the remair@ngunt is appropriated as
legal reserve.

In addition to the amount appropriated for legalerge, the Company may
appropriate an amount equal to the negative itembea stockholders’ equity
from retained earnings as special reserve.

Interest on capital.

After deducting items a to e, 10%15% of the remaining earnings is
appropriated as employees’ bonuses and up to 2&rameration to directors
and supervisors.

The remaining amount is to be distributed to stotdtdrs in accordance with
the resolution adopted at the stockholders’ meeting

The Taiwan imputation tax system requires thmt @ndistributed current earnings
of a company derived on or after January 1, 199&uigect to an additional
corporate income tax if the earnings are not disted in the following year’'s
shareholders’ meeting. This 10% additional taxundistributed earnings paid by
the company may be used as tax credit by sharaisoldlecluding foreign
shareholders, against the withholding tax on divittee In addition, the domestic
shareholders can claim a proportionate share ircongpany’s corporate income
tax as tax credit against its individual income liakility effective 1998.



C) The appropriation of 2010 and 2009 earnings leeh approved at the Board of
Directors’ meeting and stockholders’ meeting on dha21, 2011 and June 9, 2010,
respectively. Details are summarized below:

2010 Earnings 2009 Earnings
Dividend Dividend
per share per share
Amount (in dollars) Amount  (in dollars)
Legal reserve $ 23,260 $ 30,919
Cash dividends 183,866 $ 1.11 197,999 § 1.30
Employees’ cash bonuses Note 1 Note 2

Directors’ and supervisors’

remuneration

Note 1: The amounts approved during the stockhseldaeeting for employees’ bonus and directors’
and supervisors’ remuneration are $38,200 and $51@4pectively.

Note 2: The amounts approved during the stockhsldeeeting for employees’ bonus and directors’
and supervisors’ remuneration are $41,740 and $5r88pectively.

The appropriation for 2010 earnings has not begroapd at the stockholders’
meeting as of the report date.

D) The estimated amounts of employees’ bonuses $20¢421 and $16,820, and the
estimated amounts for directors’ and supervisoeghuneration were $2,723 and
$2,243 for the three-month periods ended March2811 and 2010, respectively.
The above amounts constitute 10%~15% and 2%, resplgc of the net income
after taking into account the legal reserve, amdracognized as operating cost and
expense. If the actual distribution amounts ar#emhint from the estimated
amounts, the difference will be adjusted in theome statement of the following
year.

E) The distribution of the employees’ bonus andedirs’ and supervisors’
remuneration in 2010, as mentioned in C) above, different from the employees’
bonus of $41,401 and directors’ and supervisorsurgeration of $5,520 recognized
in the 2010 financial statements. The differerafe®3,201 and $480, respectively,
had been adjusted in the income statement forhitee4month period ended March
31, 2011. The distribution of the employees’ boand directors’ and supervisors’
remuneration in 2009, as mentioned in C) above,different from the employees’
bonus of $42,596 and directors’ and supervisorsurgeration of $5,679 recognized
in the 2009 financial statements. The differenzie$856 and $114, respectively,
had been adjusted in the income statement foreahegnded December 31, 2010.

” ”



(20) Earninggper share

For the three-month period endextdii 31, 2011

Amount Weighted average Earnings per shar@ote 1)
number of outstanding
Before After common shares Before After
income tax income tax (In thousands of shares) income tax income tax

Basic earnings per share
Net income $ 181,726 $ 129,764 153997 $ L18 % 0.84
Dilutive effect:

Stock options - - 2,431

Employees’ bonuses - - 1,467
Diluted earnings

per share:
Net income $ 181,726 $ 129,764 157,895 $ 115 $ 0.82

For the three-month period endextdi 31, 2010

Amount Weighted average Earnings per shat@ote 1)
number of outstanding
Before After common shares Before After
income tax income tax (In thousands of shares) income tax income tax
Basic earnings per share:
Net income $ 155845 $ 109,841 151,464 $ 1.03 $ 0.73
Dilutive effect:
Stock options - - 4,340
Employees’ bonuses - - 1,221
Diluted earnings
per share:
Net income $ 155845 $§ 109,841 157,025 $ 0.99 § 0.70

Note 1: In New Taiwan Dollars.

Effective January 1, 2008, as employees’ bonusdcbaldistributed in the form @tock, the
diluted EPS computation shall include the estimasbdres that would increase fr
employees’ stock bonus issuance in the computatiothe weightedaverage number
common shares outstanding during the reportingogetiaking into account the diluti
effects of stock bonus on potential common shamsreas, basic EPS shall be calcul
based on the weightererage number of common shares outstanding dthggeporting
periodthat include the shares of employees’ stock booughle appropriation of prior ye
earnings, which have already been resolved atttdoilsolders’ meeting held in the repogin
period. Since capitalization of employees’ bonus no longaobngs to distribution of sto
dividends, the calculation of basic EPS and dillE&S for all periods presented shall no
adjusted retroactively.



(21) Treasury stock
Changes in the treasury stock for the three-moetiogs ended March 31, 2011 and
2010 are set forth below (in thousands of shares):

A) For the three-month period ended March?811
Purpose Beginning Additions Disposals Ending
Employee stock options 13,099 - - 13,099
For the three-month period ended Marth?®10
Purpose Beginning Additions Disposals Ending
Employee stock options 13,099 - - 13,099

B) The maximum and ending balances of treasury stawk the three-month
periods ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 are as fsilow

March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
Maximum balance  Ending balance Maximum balance Ending balance
$ 370,182 § 370,182 $ 370,182  $ 370,182

C) According to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchafige the percentage of the number
of shares of treasury stocks shall not exceed 10%eototal shares of common
stocks issued by the Company and the total amoliiteasury stock shall not
exceed the total amount of retained earnings, padpital in excess of par value,
and realized capital reserve.

D) According to the R.O.C. Securities and ExchaAgg treasury stocks held by the
Company shall not be pledged, and shall bear i afyshareholders until reissued.

E) According to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchaige treasury shares for the
purpose of enhancing the Company’s creditworthimegsshareholders’ equity not
reissued within six months shall be retired, whileasury stocks for all other
purposes shall be reissued within three years tremmonth of acquisition.

(22) Employee stock option plan
A) On November 14, 2007, the board of directors apgtdinie employee stock option
plans which provide for the issuance of 12,000,008s of options, that can be
converted to one share of common stock per unithemthe contributed capital
changes as a result of the issuance of new shhoesmnon stock, the option price
will be adjusted based on a predetermined formulthe Company has issued the
employee stock options on December 17, 2007. Tdek ©ption has an exercise
period of six years. Employees will be able torelse these options after two




years in accordance with the procedures of the @yeplstock option plan.
B) The units and weighted average exercise price @fstbck options for the three-

month periods ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 didlews:
For the three-month periods endealdid 31,

2011 2010
Weighted-average Weighted-average
Units exercise price Units exercise price
Stock Options (in thousands) (in dollars) (Note 1) _(in thousands) (in dollars) (Note 1)
Beginning balance 7,249 % 24.20 12,663 $ 25.33
Number of options granted - - - -
Adjustment due to issuance
of stock dividends - - - -
Exercised (Note 2 and 3) ( 1,807) - ( 3,899) -
Cancelled ( 1) - ( 420) -
Ending balance 5,441 24 20 8,344 24.80
Exercisable at the end of the
period _ 5.441 ___ 2844

Authorized but unissued at the
end of the period

Note 1: The exercise price has been adjusted mrdance with the terms of the plan.

Note 2: As of March 31, 2011, 2,426 thousand shhezbnot been registered and were accounted fogrund
stock subscriptions received in advance.

Note 3: As of March 31, 2010, 5,143 thousand shhezknot been registered and were accounted fogrund
stock subscriptions received in advance.

C)As of March 31, 2011 and 2010, the details of @umding stock options are as
follows:
For the three-month periodeshMarch 31, 2011

Outstanding stock options Exercisable stock options
Weighted-average Weighted-average
Exercise price Units Weighted-average exercise price Units exercise price
(in dollars) (in thousands) remaining life (year) (in dollars) (in thousands) (in dollars)
$ 24.20 5,441 2.67 % 24.20 5,441 $ 24.20

For the three-month perioded March 31, 2010

Outstanding stock options Exercisable stock options
Weighted-average Weighted-average
Exercise price Units Weighted-average exercise price Units exercise price
(in dollars)  (in thousands)_remaining life (year) (in dollars)  (in thousands) (in dollars)
$ 24.80 8,344 3.67 $ 24.80 2,844 § 24.80



D) The pro-forma information as if the “fair-value rhetl” has been adopted is as
follows:
(a) Model: The Black-Scholes model

(b) Assumptions:

Black-Scholes model assumptions For the three-month period ended March 310201
Dividend yield 0%

Volatility (Note 1) 43.58%

Risk-free interest rate 2.65%

Expected life of the option 4.3 years

Exercise price (Note 2) $ 24.8 (in dollars)
Amortization period 2~3 years

Note 1: The Company started trading in OTC on May 2002, so it adopted the stock prices
from May 21, 2002 to February 10, 2004 (the dat@aop were given). Also, the stock
prices mentioned above considered the effect afilegs distribution every year.

Note 2: Exercise price of the stock options nwmdd above considered the effect of earnings
distribution and was readjusted to $24.8.

(c) Result of evaluation:

For the three-month period
ended March 31, 2010

Weighted average fair value of options granted to  § 10.95
employees (in dollars)
Compensation cost under “fair value method” $ 4,838

There is no compensation cost for the three-moetiog ended March 31, 2011 under the fair
value method.

(23) Personnel, depreciation and amortization esgen

For thethree-month periorendecMarct 31, 2(11

Operating cos Operating expens Total
Personnel expens
Salarie $ 28,453  $ 266,642 $ 295,095
Labor and health insurars 2,896 19,425 22,321
Pensiol 1,035 12,065 13,100
Otheis 653 17,479 18,132
$ 33,037 § 315,611 § 348,648
Depreciation $ 19,890 $ 18,936 § 38,826
Amortization $ 69,739 § 17,884 § 87,623




For thethreemonth perio endedMarck 31, 2(1C

Operating cos Operating expens Total
Personnel expens
Salarie $ 23,995 § 227,170 $ 251,165
Labor and health insurars 1,445 16,293 17,738
Pensiol 381 9,815 10,196
Otheis 281 14,288 14,569
$ 26,102 § 207,566 $§ 293,668
Depreciation $ 13,974 $ 16,222 $§ 30,196
Amortization $ 56,309 $ 14,785 $ 71,094

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(1) Names and relationship of related parties

Names of related parties Relationship with the Company
Nexon Corporation (Nexon) Note
Taiwan e-sports Co., Ltd. Investee company accounted for under the
equity method
Gamania Cheer Up Foundation Same chairman

Note: Nexon held more than 20% of the Company’sngoshares which were accounted
for under the equity method since March 2011. Aexdh has the ability to
exercise significant influence on the Company’srapenal decisions and thus
considered as the Company’s related party, thevaetetransaction information
between the Company and Nexon are disclosed fremdh.

(2) Significant transactions and balances withteglgarties
A) License fees

For the three-month periods ended Ma&fch

2011 2010
Amount % of license fees Amount _% of license fees
Nexon $ 94,090 19 § - -
The above represents payments for license feeges af on-line games. The
license fees are negotiated based on differentract

B) Donation
For the three-month periods ended Ma&rich
2011 2010
% of % of
Amount donation Amount donation
Gamania Cheer
Up Foundation $ 5.000 93 §




C) Deferred charges

March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
% of net % of net
Amount deferred charges Amount deferred charges
Nexon $ 99,433 21§

The above represents payment for on-line gamessectees.
D) Accounts payable

March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
% of net % of net
Amount _accounts payable Amount accounts payable
Nexon $ 62,332 15§
6. DETAILS OF PLEDGED OR RESTRICTED ASSETS
March 31,
Assets 2011 2010 Purpose
Cash in bank (shown in other Short-term loans
financial assetscurrent) $ - 9 2,000 guarantee
Land 90,254 117,270 Short-term and long-
term loans /
Credit lines
Buildings 72,954 116,931 ”

$ 163,208 § 236,201

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In addition to Note 4(15), others are as follows:

A) As of March 31, 2011, the total future rental pagpisefor the next 3 years under non-
cancelable operating lease agreements for the lefaskee Group’s office building,
transportation equipment and networking device $i6,963.

B) The Company contracted the use of cable lines,nB1T&, with rental charges based on
utilization. In addition, the Company contractefmseveral on-line game vendors and
will pay royalty based on actual usage.

8. MAJOR CATASTROPHE
None.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
None.




10.0THERS
(1) Financial statement presentation

Certain accounts in the March 31, 2010 consoliddiedncial statements were
reclassified to conform with the March 31, 2011 swidated financial statements

presentation.
(2) Fair values of the financial instruments
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
Fair value Fair value
Quotations Quotations
Book inan active Estimated Book in an active Estimated
value market value value market value

Financial instruments
Non-derivative
financial instruments
Assets
Financial assets with $2,966,017 (Note A) $2,966,017 $2,528,507 (Note A) $2,528,507
fair values equal to
book values
Financial assets at fair 200,000 200,000 - - - -
value through profit or

loss
Financial assets carried 114,294 - - 114,294 - -
at cost
Refundable deposits 50,507 - 50,507 46,072 - 46,072
Liabilities
Financial liabilities $1,228,758 (Note A) $1,228,758 $§ 978,205 (Note A) § 978,205

with fair values

equal to book values
Long-term loan 21,880 - 21,431 21,783 - 20,644
Guarantee deposits 12 - 12 380 - 380

The methods and assumptions used to estimateitheafaes of the financial instruments

are summarized below:

A) For short-term instruments, the book value is axprate to the fair value because of
their short-term maturities. This applies to casbtes and accounts receivable, other
receivables (excluding income tax refundable), ofireancial asset current, short-
term loans, notes and accounts payable (includetafed party), accrued expenses,
other payables, current portion of long-term ligie$ and other current liabilities.

B) Designated as financial assets at fair value thHrqurgfit or loss are regarded as quoted
in an active market if quoted price are readily aegllarly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing serviceregulatory agency, and those price



represent actual and regularly occurring marketstations on an arm’s length basis.
If the market for financial instruments is not &eti an entity establishes fair value by
using a valuation technique. Valuation technigmetude using recent arm’s length
market transactions between knowledgeable, wilpagies, if available, reference to
the current fair value of another instrument tisasubstantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing.

C) The fair value of long-term loans is based on tresgnt value of expected cash flow
amounts. The discount rate was another instrunwéith the Group could acquire
similar terms at about 1.775% and 2.225%.

D) The fair values of refundable deposits and guaeadéposits are the book value since
the amounts are insignificant.

E) Off-balance sheet financial instruments with credit:

March 3,
2011 2010
Guarantee foloans of subsidiarit $ 435.010 $ 256,000

According to the Company’s credit policy, guarastean be provided for the loans
borrowed by the subsidiaries in which the Compaingctly or indirectly holds more
than 50% voting rights and over which the Compaary exercise controlling power.
No collaterals have been requested from thesedialiss as the Company is able to
monitor its credit standing. Should these subsigsadefault, the losses that would
be incurred by the Company approximate the amoluthteoguarantee provided by the
Company.

F) As of March 31, 2011 and 2010, the fair valukthe financial instruments with interest

rate risk were $360,434 and $356,405, respectively.

(3) Procedure of financial risk control and hedge
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety afaincial risks, including market risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interasitte risk.

The Group’s overall risk management focuses onuttpgedictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimize potential adverse effecttherGroup’s financial performance.

The Group’s risk management program considers tleeteof economic environment,
competition and market value risk. The Group a#iaio the best risk position, holds
appropriate liquidity position and centers on mamagnt of all the market risks.

To reach the objective of risk management, the @shbedged activities are focused on
the market value risk and the cash flow risk.



(4) Information of financial risk

A) Financial instruments of equity: Financial assedrried at costnon-current
(A) Market risk

The Group’s trading of financial assets has no etapkice, so the Group expects
no significant market risk.

(B) Credit risk
The Group has evaluated credit standing of the teoparties and does not expect
any non-fulfillment of the terms of the contraat,the chance of credit risk is low.
(C) Liquidity risk
There is no active market for financial assetsiedrat cost of the Group, so the
Group expects to have liquidity risk.

(D) Cash flow interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearirggtss cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

B) Receivables: Notes and accounts receivable tret ceceivables

(A) Market risk
The Group’s receivables are due within one year,the Group expects no
significant market risk.

(B) Credit risk
The debtors of the Group have good credit standsiogthe Group expects no
significant credit risk.

(C) Liquidity risk
The Group’s receivables are due within one year,tte Group expects no
significant liquidity risk.

(D) Cash flow interest rate risk
The Group’s receivables are due within one year,the Group expects no
significant cash flow interest risk.

C) Loans: Short-term loans and long-term loansloling current portion of long-term

loans).
(A) Market risk

As interest rates for most of the loans for workoapital are fixed, the Group
expects no significant market risk.



(B) Credit risk
None.
(C) Liquidity risk

The working capital of the Group is sufficient tover the loans, so it expects no
significant liquidity risk.

(D) Cash flow interest risk

Fixed and floating interests for loans are adofgdhe Group. There will be no
cash flow interest risk for loans with fixed intstebut for loans with floating
interest, effective interest will vary with fluctians in market interest and it will
change future cash flows.

D) Some transactions of the Company and its domesibsidiaries involve non-
functional currency, resulting in foreign currenggnominated assets and liabilities
which are affected by exchange rate fluctuationghe significant foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities of the Compauayits domestic subsidiaries as of
March 31, 2011 and 2010 are summarized below:

March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

Foreign Currency Exchange  Foreign Currency Exchange

Amount (Note) Rate Amount (Note) Rate
Financial Assets
USD : TWD USD 1,621,767 29.5288 USD 268,998  31.7730
HKD : TWD HKD 3,545,992 3.7889 HKD 5,195,203 4.0924
CNY : TWD CNY 2,034,034 4.4972 CNY 1,368,616 4.6546
Financial Liabilities
USD : TWD USD 4,187,689 29.5288 USD 3,646,160  31.7730

Note: Foreign currency amount is expressed in dolla

(5) For the three-month periods ended March 31,1284d 2010, the Group donated cash
amounting to $5,400 and $800, respectively, toittharand educational institutions that
are accredited by the government, without signifiGgopointed considerations.



11. DISCLOSURE INFORMATION

(1) Related information of significant transactions

A) Financing activities to any company or person: None

B) Guarantee for any other company or person:

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Rodl

)

invce:;)g gacl:rc]))r/n%ranies Parties being guaranteed Maximum Ratio of
) Limit of outstanding . Amount of Maximum
- - Outstanding . accumulated .
Relationship | guarantee for guarantee amoun guarantee with :;[1mount availabl
: guarantee amount a guarantee amoun
Number with the each party | for the threemonth =\ 21" 5011 collateral |/ "\ lue of the [OF guarantee
Name Name C Note 4) eriod ended arc ’ laced 0 netvalue o " (Notes 3 and 4
(Note 1) ompany ( P P Company
March 31, 2011
(Note 2)
0 The Companysameastor Digital 2 $ 497,106 | $ 330,000 | $ 310,000 None 10.89% $ 1,657,020
Entertainment Co., (30% of th
Ltd. o of the
Company’s
capital)
0 The Companysamania Digital 3 $ 497,106 66,000 66,000 None 2.32% 1,657,020
Entertainment
(Japan) Co., Ltd. (CQ:SO% of the
ompany’s
capital)
0 The Companysamania Digital 3 $ 497,106 59,010 59,010 None 2.07% 1,657,020
Entertainment
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (CQ:SO% of the
ompany’s
capital)

Note 1: Number O represents the Company.
Note 2: Number 2 means the Company directly owres 60% of the shares of the subsidiary.

Number 3 means the Company and the subgidian over 50% of the shares of the investee cospan
Note 3:The calculation method of maximum amountlakike for guarantee, the maximum outstanding guesamount and the recognized contingent losyif
should be stated in the financial statements.

Note 4:The Company provides guarantee for the digvgs in which the Company directly or indiredtiglds more than 50% voting rights.

each party is 30% of the Company'’s capital, andiih&imum amount available for guarantee is the Gomis capital.

~ 4) ~
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C) Marketable securities held at March 31, 2011
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars / ThousandStmares

March31, 2C11
Typesgilrjr;ﬁirgsetable Relationship of the issuers Number of Market Value
Compan' (Note J) Name of marketable securit| with the security holde | General ledger accot shares Book value Percentage  (Note 2) Note
The Company] Common Stock | Gamania Holdings Ltd. Subsidiary Learga investment 25,320 | $ 735,582 1000 | $ 735,582 Note 4
” 7 Gamania Korea Co., Ltd. 7 7 416 23,859 100% 23,859 i
7 7 Fantasy Fish Digital Games » ’ ”
Co.. Ltd. 8,174 14,207 99.69% 12,316
g g Gameastor Digital » ’ P
Entertainment Co., Ltd. 3,863 51,542 72.08% 51,965
GS?anla Asia Investment Cop., ” 13.945 137,000 100% 137,000 ”
’ ’ Gamania Digital ’
Entertainment Labuan 7 10 |( 151) 100%  |( 151) 7
Holdings, Ltd.
” ” Fundation Digital ” 7 6,448 23,409 100% 23,409 ,
Entertainment Co., Ltd. (Note 3) (Note 3)
7 7 Playcoo Co. i i 13,996 101,243 75.25% 55,115 7
7 7 Redgate Games Co., Ltd. i i 10,200 4,580 100% 4,580 7
7 7 Seedo Games Co., Ltd. ¢ ” 10,200 9,481 100% 9,481 7
7 7 Two Tigers Co., Ltd. i i 627 6,241 51% 6,241 7
7 7 Gash Plus Company Ltd. 7 7 5,000 44,085 100% 44,085 7
” ” Investee company
Taiwan e-sports Co., Ltd. accounted for under the i 3,200 5,253 37.65% 5,253 None
equity method
’ ’ Investee company
. accounted for under | Financial assets carried |at ,
NC Taiwan Co., Ltd. financial assets carried at  cost— non-current 2,100 22,841 15% 22,841
cost

Note 1: Marketable securities consist of stocksidso beneficiary certificates and other derivainstruments. _
Note 2: The market value of listed equity secwsitiad closed-end mutual funds is determined basetbsing price and net asset value of funds, amdy, at the
balance sheet date. The market value of open-engahfunds is determined based on the net assebpse at the balance sheet date.

Note 3: Including prepayment of $30,000 for long¥ténvestment.
Note 4: The transaction has been eliminated irctimsolidated financial statements.
Marketable securities acquired or sold during tire¢-month period ended March 31, 2011 in exce$4@®,000 or 20% of capital: None.
Acquired real estate in excess of $100,000 or 20eapital: None.
Disposal of real estate in excess of $100,000 &t @bcapital: None.
Sales to or purchases from related parties in exae$100,000 or 20% of capital: None.
Receivable from related parties in excess of $d¥ 20% of capital: None.
Information on derivative transactions: None.
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@)

Information

of investee companies

A) Information of investee companies:
The informatiorabou investee companies was based on unreviewed firlatatament:

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars / ThousandSlmare

Main operating

Original investment cost

Held by the Company

Income (loss)

Investment incom

e

C N fi tee Locati i d by the| (I ized Not
ompany | Name of investee ocation activities 2011.3.31 | 2010.3.31 Nusrﬁgreersof Percentagd Book value mCLijr:\r/eeste)(/a e (t)(;lstsh)er%coorgggﬁy ote
P.O. Box 30592 SMB,
; Cayside, 2nd Floor o
The Gamania it ’ Investment Subsidiary
. Harbour Drive, Grand h 1,608,08 1,530,031 25,320 100% 753,582 ,550 9,550
Company | Holdings Ltd. Cayman, Cayman Islands, holdings $ 9% ' $ $ 9 § (Note 2)
British West Indies
; 3F, NO.75-6 Soodang B/D :
» Gamania y Design and sales ”
Samseong-Dong Kang 267,952 249,615 416 100% 23,859 5,678) |( 5,678)
Korea Co., Ltd. Nam-Gu, Seoul, Korea of software
. Design and
; Fantasy Fish 18F, No. 736 Chang-Cheng research and ;
Digital Games Rd., Chung-Ho City, development of 310,000 310,000 8,174 99.69% 14,207 12,341) |( 12,304)
Co., Ltd. Taipei County, Taiwan softevare
Gameastor Digita Software services
’ Entertainment 7 and sales 211,433 211,433 3,863 72.08% 51,542 4,359 3,142 7
Co., Ltd.
Gamania Asia
” In\éestment Co., ” 'r;]‘geﬁ}rr%esm 190,000 190,000 13,945 | 100% 137,000 1,204 1,204 ¢
Ltd.
Gamania Digital Level 15(A), Main Office
Entertainment Tower, Financial Park Investment
4 Labuan, 87000 Labuan, h 329 329 10 100% ( 151) 1 1 ’
Labuan Jalan Merdeka. 87000 holdings
Holdings, Ltd. alan Merdexa, ;
' Labuan, FT, Malaysia
Fundation Digital [18F, No. 736 Chang-Cheng Sales and
” Entertai R ; publishing of 150,000 120,000 6,448 100% 23,409 9,674) |( 9,674) P
inment Rd., Chung-Ho City, magazines and Note 1) (Note 1)
Co., Ltd. Taipei County, Taiwan periodicals ote ote
Design and
” » research and 152,554 152,554 13,996 75.25% 101,243 646) | ( 4,681) »
Playcoo Co. development of (Note 3)
software

Note 1: Including prepayment 030,000 for lon¢-term investmen
Note 2: The transaction has been eliminated irctimsolidated financial statements.
Note 3: Including amortization of subsidiary’s patamounting to ($4,195).
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Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars / ThousandSlare

Main operatin Original investment cost Held by the Company Income (loss) | Investment income
Company | Name of investee Location : i pt' Ing Number of incurred by the| (loss) recognized Note
activiues 2011.3.31 | 2010.3.31 shares Percentagg Book value investee by the Company
Design and
18F, No. 736 Chang-Cheng o
The Redgate Games ' ; - Y. research and Subsidiary
Rd., Chung-Ho City, Taipei $ 102,000 | $ 82,000 10,200 100% $ 4,580 |($ 14,380) | ($ 14,380)
Company | Co., Ltd. County, Taiwan devse(l?tevrgreent of (Note)
Design and
” Seedo Games ” research and ”
Co., Ltd. development of 102,000 82,000 10,200 100% 9,481 |( 12,341) | ( 12,341)
software
” Two Tigers ” Animation ”
Co., Ltd. production 6,269 6,269 627 51% 6,241 |( | ( 4)
Software and
” Gash Plus ” electronic ”
Company Ltd. information 50,000 - 5,000 | 100% 44,085 |( 5,915) | ( 5,915)
services and sales
Software and Investee
. ) 9F, No.176 Chung Hsiao ; company
¢ Tamwan &SpOrs| st Rd. Section 4, Taipei electronic 32,000 32,000 3,200 | 37.65% 5,253 |( 3,963) | ( 1,492) | accounted fo
0., Ltd. Citv. Tai information der th
iy, Taiwan services and salés under the
equity methog
G ‘ Investee
Gamania Asig o000 " 18F, No. 736 Chang-Cheng .« company
investment | Dig"al Rd., Chung-Ho City, TaipgiDeSian and sales g, o5 | g0 605 | 1,458 | 27.20% 19,609 4,359 1,186 | accoyntec fo
ntertainment | county. Taiwan of software ur
Co.,Ltd. | =5 |iq. Y, equity methog
' (Note)
G . G . P.O. Box 30592 SMB,
amania - jLamania Cayside, 2nd Floor, Harba  estment | USD 48,710 | USD 46,040 | 48,710 100%  |USD 25,676 |USD 327 | USD 327 | Subsidiary
Holdings International | Drive, Grand Cayman, holdings h d h d h d housand h d (Note)
Ltd. Holdings Ltd. Cayman Islands, British thousan thousan thousan thousan thousan ote
West Indies
Gamania  |Gamania Digital|symitomo Ooimachi Bldg. | Design and sales
International Entertainment | (South) 3F, 1-20-10 Town of software; | USD 14,298 | USD 14,298 3 100% |USD 6,717 |USD 868 | USD 868 ”
Holdings (Japan) Co., Ooi, Shinagawa-Ku, Tokyp,  sales of thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand
Ltd. Ltd. Japan 140-0014 hardware

Note: Thetransactio has been eliminated in the consolidated finantsEment:
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Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars / ThousandSlmare

. . Original investment cost Held by the Company Income (loss) | Investment income
Company Name of Location Main operating incurred by the| (loss) recognized Note
investee activities Number of :
2011.3.31 | 2010.3.31 shares Percentage Book value investee by the Company
Gamania ) P.O. Box 30592 SME
; Gamania | Cayside, 2nd Floor, Investment | USD 31,884 | USD 29,784 | 32,370 | 98.37% |USD 12,539 | USD 262 | USD 262 | Subsidiary
International | China Harbour Drive, Grand holdings N 3
Holdings Ltd. | Holdings Ltd (B;?tygp]ac\}e%ﬁ,r?&ag;gands g Ell\ljgltlzarllc)i thousand thousand thousand thousand (Note 3)
iti i

G i ; P.O. Box 2804 Scotia Cent

o tonal |Gamania i George Town, ' | Investment | USD 6,150 | USD 4,850 | 6,150 100% [USD 3,545 |(USD 418 |(USD 418 ,

: rand Cayman - , oldings

Holdings Ltd. Holdings Ltd Cayman Iglands 9 thousand thousand thousand thousand) thousand)
Gamania Gamani

e agional ﬂg}gﬁréasnds Prof J H Barincklaan 5, Investment | EUR 1,500 | ELR 500 | 1,500 100%  |EUR 1,384 |(ELR 29 |(BWR 29 ,

. Cooperatief | 1183AT Amstelveen holdings thousand |  thousand thousand thousand) thousand)

Holdings Ltd. UA (Note 2)
G i ; -1Unit 509 5/F., Conit Design anc

ntomational | edog Studid”investment Building, No.18 _research and | HKD 10,455 | HKD 10,455 | 10,455 100% [HKD 4,491 |(USD 1,943 [(USD 1,943 ,

_ Ltd. Hok Yuen St. Hunghom, | development of|  {housand thousand thousand thousand) thousand)

Holdings Ltd. Kowloon, Hong Kong software
Gamania Gash Plu Unit 509 5/F., Conit Supplyof

International Hong Kong) vasg}mentsBuddlngﬁ No.lSsoft\avarle services (Note 4) - | (Note 4) - (USD 93 [(USD 93 [(USD 93 ”

ompan ok Yuen St. Hunghom, | and electronic
Holdings Ltd. | Ltd. pany Kowloon, Hong Kogng information thousand) thousand) thousand)
. ) ___ |Fourth Floor, One Capit;

Gamania China|Gamania Sind Place P.O. Box 874GT, Investment | USD 26,920 | USD 26,920 26,920 100% USD 1,425 | (USD 1,289 |(USD 1,289 ”

Holdings Ltd. | Holdings Ltd| Grand Cayman, Cayman holdings thousand thousand thousand thousand) thousand)

Islands, British West Indies

Note 1: Including prepayment of USD2,500 thousarddng-term investment.
Note 2: Including prepayment of EUR1 million fonlp-term investment.

Note 3: The transaction has been eliminated irctimsolidated financial statements.

Note 4: As of March 31, 2011, the Company has masted in the subsidiary.

~ 46 ~




Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars / ThousandSlmare

. . Original investment cost Held by the Company Income (loss) |Investmenincome
Compan Name of Location Main operating incurred by the| (loss) recognized Note
pany investee tivit Number of y g
actvities 2011.3.31 | 2010.3.31 chares | Percentage| Book value investee | by the Company
. [Gamani Flat 504-507, 5F, Conic -
Gamania China Elngtle?tainment Investment Building, 13 | Design and salesUSD 3,009 | USD 3,009 | 35,500 100% USD 7,188 | USD 1,776 |USD 1,776 | Subsidiary
Holdings Ltd. | (H.K.) Co., Hok Yuen St. Hunghom, of software thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand (Note 2)
Ltd. Kowloon, Hong Kong
Gamani o ]
Gamania Sino | 2igital | ngg"(‘ga%%d Ne.329, T1af pesign and salesUSD 23,000 | USD 23,000 N/A 100% | USD 1,238 |(USD 1,271 |(USD 1,271 ,
Holdings Ltd. (Ll?gijing) Co.,| Shanghai City, China | ©f software thousand |  thousand thousand thousand) thousand)
Gamania Gamania Suite 806, 1220 N. Market | |
Western En%ertainmem Street, Wilmington, DE Design and salesUSD 6,130 | USD 4,830 1 100% USD 3,560 |(USD 403 [(USD 403 ”
Holdings Ltd. (LLtJdS') Co.. é%gs?lé County of New of software thousand |  thousand thousand thousand) thousand)
Gamani —
Gamania
Neljerands - "Digital | Naritaweg 165, Telestone 8,Design and salesEUR 1,500 | EUR 500 | 1,500 |~ 100% | EUR 1,384 [(ER 28 [(EWR 28 ,
Cooperatief | Entertainment 1043 BW, Amsterdam of software thousand | thousand thousand thousand) thousand)
(Europe) B.V. (Note 1)

Note 1: Including prepayment of EUR1 million fonlp-term investment.

Note 2: The transaction has been eliminated irctimsolidated financial statements.

B) Financing activities to any company or person: None

C) Guarantee information: None.
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D) Marketable securities held at March 31, 2011:

Type of March 3:, 2(11
marketable
securities Name of marketable Relationship with the security General ledger | Number of shares Market value
Issue (Note J) securitie holder: accoun (Note ?) Book value Percentag (Note 2) Note
Gamani Gamania | ional investmente USD 25,676 USD 25,676
amania amania Internationa o investiments — , ,
Holdings Ltd. Common Stock|™{}5|gings Ltd. Subsidiary accounted for und¢ 48,710 thousand 100% thousand Note 5
the equity method
Gamania Gamania Digital
International 7 Entertainment 7 7 3 | USD . 6,717 100 | USD 6,717 7
Holdings Ltd. (Japan) Co., Ltd. thousand ’ thousand
Gamania ; ;
: ” Gamania China » ” USD 12,539 USD 11,645 ”
Hé?é?nagtg)ﬂ%l_ Holdings Ltd. 32,370 thousand 98.37 thousand
Gamania Gamani
: ” . ” ” USD 3,545 USD 3,545 ”
H(t)tlaéinnaggoE% I\_/}/de.stern Holdings 6,150 thousand 100% thousand
; Gamani
Gamania
: ” Netherlands P » EUR 1,384 EUR 1,384 ”
International ; 1,500 ’ 100% :
d Holdings ’ thousand thousand
Holdings Ltd. Coope?atief U.A
Gamania ; ;
: ” FII'EdOg Studio ” ” HKD 4,491 HKD 4,491 ”
Hct)leéir]naglsoﬂ%l Company Ltd. 10,455 thousand 100% thousand
Gamania Gash Plu
International 7 Hong Kong 7 7 (Note 4) (USD X 93 . |(USD X 93 7
Holdings Ltd Etompanth . thousand) thousand)
; ; Gamania Digite
Gamania China ” : ” ” USsh 7,188 USD 7,188 ”
Holdings Ltd. Entertainment 35,500 thousand 100% thousand

(H.K.) Co., Ltd

Note 1: Marketable securities consist of stocksdso beneficiary certificates and other derivathstruments.

Note 2: The market value of listed equity secusitied closed-end mutual funds is determined basetbeing price and net asset value of funds, sy, at the balance sheet date.
The market value of open-end mutual funds is deétexthbased on the net asset par value at the leaddreet date.

Note 3: Unit: In thousand shares.

Note 4: As of March 31, 2011, the Company has ma¢sted in the subsidiary.

Note 5: The transaction has been eliminated irctimsolidated financial statements.
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Type of March 3;, 2C11
marketable
securities Name of marketable Relationship with the security General ledger | Number of shares Market value
Issue (Note J) securitie holder: accoun (Note 3 Book valut Percentac (Note 2) Note
G ia Chi G ia Si investments S 425 S 425
amania China amania Sino - investments — Ush 1, USD 1,
Holdings Ltd. Common Stock "o dings Ltd. Subsidiary accounted for und¢ 26,920 thousand 100% thousand Note 4
the equity method
Qi Gamania Digite
Gamania Sino ” : ” ” USD 1,238 USD 1,238 ”
Holdings Ltd. FBnéﬁirrtlgl)nggmLtd N/A thousand 100% thousand
Gamania Gamania Digital
; ” : ” ” USD 3,560 USD 3,560 ”
Vli/tf(eftern Holdings Egt.erlf%lnment (U.s. 1 thousand 100% thousand
Gamania o DY
Gamania Digital
Netherlands ” : ” ” EUR 1,384 EUR 1,384 ”
; Entertainment 1,500 i 100% ’
Holdings ’ thousand thousand
Coope?atief UA. (Europe) B.V.
Gamania Asia Gameastor Digital Investee company
Investment Co., 7 Entertainment accounted for under ” 1,458 19,609 27.20% 19,609 7
Ltd. Co., Ltd. the equity method
Gamania Asi ; ; ; ;
” Nice Finance Financial assets
Il_qzj/festment Co,, Co., Ltd. None carried at cost 9,383 91,453 14.60% 91,453 None
Gamania Asi wan Interactiv
7 7 7 285 2,850 14.96% 2,850 7

Investment Co.,
Ltd.

Entertainment Co.,
Ltd.

Note 1: Marketable securities consist of stocksidso beneficiary certificates and other derivathstruments.
Note 2: The market value of listed equity secusitied closed-end mutual funds is determined basetbsing price and net asset value of funds, sy, at the balance sheet date.

The market value of open-end mutual funds is deterthbased on the net asset par value at the leaddreet date.
Note 3: Unit: In thousand shares.
Note 4: The transaction has been eliminated irctimsolidated financial statements.

F) Acquired real estate in excess of $100,000 or 20éapital: None.

G) Disposal of real estate in excess of $100,000 &6 @bcapital: None.

H) Sale to or purchases from related parties in exae$%00,000 or 20% of capital: None.
I) Receivable from related parties in excess of $D@ 20% of capital: None.

J) Information on derivative transactions: None.
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E) Marketable securities acquired or sold during tireé-month period ended March 31, 2011 in exce$4@®,000 or 20% of capital: None.




(3) DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON INVESTMENT IN MAINLANDCHINA

A)
Remitted or received Direct and | Investment loss Accumulate(
Accumulated . Accumulated . " . Balance of| investment
. . . investment amount | . | indirect recognized | . .
Name of investee Main Capital Investmentinvestment a durina the period | INvestment as ercentagd durina the investment| income
in Mainland China activities P method | of January 1 9 P of March 31, P of 9 erigd at March 31| received as
2011 . . 2011 : P 2011 |of March 31
Remitted | Received ownership (Note 3) 2011
Gamania Digital | (RMB (USD 20,870 (USD 20,870 (USD 1,250 | (USDI,220
Entertainment es||gn a}n 174,799 )
(Beijing) Co., zgf(taviac;e thousand) (Note 2) thousand)| $ - 19 -| thousand) | 98.37% thousand) | thousand)| § -
Ltd. $786.102 $616,266 $616,266 ($  36,911) | $ 36,025

Accumulated amount of investment in Mainland Related investment amount approved by FIA Uppeit lifinvestment in Mainland China

China as of March 31, 2011
$ 616,266 (USD 20,870 thousand) $ 773,064 (Note 1)

$ 1,726,751

Note 1: Related total investment amount approveBIByis USD 26,180,000 or NTD 773,064 thousand Has®29.5288 exchange rate.

Note 2: Investment through a holding company regist in a country other than Taiwan or Mainlandn@hi
Note 3: Investment loss recognized in the persochiculated based on the percentage 98.37% oéaidiwnership using the unreviewed financial statets of the investee.

B) The Company has no significant transactions tighholding company or its subsidiaries in Maidl&hina.



(4) The relationship and significant transactibasveen the Company and its subsidiaries

For the three-month period ended March 31, 2011

Transactiems
Percentage of total
Number Relationship Transaction combined revenue or
(Note 1) Name of counterparty Name of transaction parties (Note 2) Subject Amount terms total assets (Note 3)
0 Gamania Digital Entertainment Gameastor Digital 1 Advertising expense  § 7.038 Note 4 %
Co., Ltd. Entertainment Co., Ltd.
0 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment 1 Other receivables 38,204 Note 4 1%
(Europe) B.V.
0 7 Gash Plus (Hong Kong) 1 Other receivables 29,956 Note 4 1%
Company Ltd.
0 7 Gamania Digital Entertainment 1 Other receivables 6,951 Note 4 -%
(H.K.)) Co., Ltd.
0 7 Gamania Digital Entertainment 1 Other receivables 8,601 Note 4 -%
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.
0 7 Gash Plus Company Ltd. 1 Other receivables 6,951 Note 4 -%
0 ” Gamania Holdings Ltd. 1 Other receivables 5,114 Note 4 %
0 ” Gameastor Digital 1 Accrued expenses 7.162 Note 4 -%
Entertainment Co., Ltd.
0 ” Gameastor Digital 1 Other payables 162,824 Note 4 3%
Entertainment Co., Ltd.
1 Gameastor Digital Entertainment Gamania Digital Entertainment 2 Advertising revenue 7,038 Note 4 -%
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
1 i Gamania Digital Entertainment 2 Accounts receivable 169,986 Note 4 3%
Co., Ltd.
1 7 Gamania Digital Entertainment 3 License costs 5,942 Note 4 -%
Labuan Holding, Ltd.
1 7 Gamania Digital Entertainment 3 Deferred charges 25,445 Note 4 1%
Labuan Holding, Ltd.
3 Gamania Digital Entertainment (H.K.) Gamania Digital Entertainment 2 Other payables 6,951 Note 4 -%
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
3 7 Gash Plus (Hong Kong) 3 Accounts payable 5,542 Note 4 -%
Company Ltd.
4 Gamania Digital Entertainment (Beijingdamania Digital Entertainment 2 Other payables 8,601 Note 4 -%

Co., Ltd.

Co., Ltd.
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Transactiembs

Percentage of total

Number Relationship Transaction combined revenue or
(Note 1) Name of counterparty Name of transaction parties (Note 2) Subject Amount terms total assets (Note 3)
5 Gamania Digital Entertainment Gamania Digital Entertainment 2 Other payables  § 38,204 Note 1%
(Europe) B.V. Co., Ltd.
6 Gamania Holdings Ltd. Gamania Digital Entertainment 2 Other payables 5,114 Note -%
Co., Ltd.
7 Gash Plus (Hong Kong) Gamania Digital Entertainment 2 Other payables 29,956 Note 1%
Company Ltd. Co., Ltd.
7 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment 3 Accounts receivable 5,542 Note -%
(H.K.) Co., Ltd.
8 Gamania Digital Entertainment (Japanfamania Digital Entertainment 3 License costs 22,864 Note 1%
Co. Ltd. Labuan Holdings, Ltd.
8 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment 3 Accounts payable 7,691 Note -%
Labuan Holdings, Ltd.
9 Gamania Digital Entertainment LabuarGamania Digital Entertainment 3 License revenue 22,864 Note 1%
Holdings, Ltd. (Japan) Co. Ltd.
9 ¢ Gameastor Digital 3 License revenue 5,942 Note -%
Entertainment Co., Ltd.
9 ” Playcoo Co. 3 License costs 78,963 Note 4%
9 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment 3 Accounts receivable 7,691 Note -%
(Japan) Co. Ltd.
9 ” Playcoo Co. 3 Accounts payable 14,640 Note -%
9 ” Gameastor Digital 3 Unearned revenue 25,445 Note 1%
Entertainment Co., Ltd. collected in advance
10 Playcoo Co. Gamania Digital Entertainment 3 License revenue 78,963 Note 4%
Labuan Holdings, Ltd.
10 4 Gamania Digital Entertainment 3 Accounts receivable 14,640 Note -0
Labuan Holdings, Ltd.
10 Gash Plus Company Ltd. Gamania Digital Entertainment 2 Other payables 6,951 Note -%

Co., Ltd.

Note 1: The transaction information of the Compang its consolidated subsidiaries should be netediumn “Number”. The number means:
1. Number O represents the Company.
2. The consolidated subsidiaries are in order fnomber 1.
Note 2: The relationships with the transactioniparare as follows:
1. The Company to the consolidated subsidiary.
2. The consolidated subsidiary to the Company.
3. The consolidated subsidiary to another consmaiaubsidiary.

Note 3: Ratios of asset/liability accounts aredted by consolidated total assets, and ratios ditfioss accounts are divided by consolidated sadeenue.
Note 4: There is no similar transaction to compeith.
Note 5: The disclosure standard reaches above G%od@he transaction amount.

It will follow the agreed price and transiact terms.
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For the three-month period ended March 31, 2010

Transactiemts
Percentage of total
Number Relationship Transaction combined revenue or
(Note 1) Name of counterparty Name of transaction parties (Note 2) Subject Amount terms total assets (Note 3)
0 Gamania Digital Entertainment Taiwan Index Co., Ltd. 1 Purchases 7,695 Note 1%
Co., Ltd.
0 i Taiwan Index Co., Ltd. 1 Advertising expense 11,122 Note 1%
0 i Gamania Digital Entertainment 1 Other receivables 12,138 Note -%
(H.K.) Co., Ltd.
0 ” Taiwan Index Co., Ltd. 1 Other receivables 7,575 Note -%
0 7 Gamania Digital Entertainment 1 Other receivables 5,545 Note -%
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.
0 ” Taiwan Index Co., Ltd. 1 Accrued expenses 8,112 Note -%
0 ” Taiwan Index Co., Ltd. 1 Other payables 93,716 Note 2%
1 Taiwan Index Co., Ltd. Gamania Digital Entertainmnen 2 Sales revenue 7,695 Note 1%
Co., Ltd.
1 7 Gamania Digital Entertainment 2 Advertising revenue 11,122 Note 1%
Co., Ltd.
1 i Gamania Digital Entertainment 2 Accounts receivable 101,828 Note 2%
Co., Ltd.
1 i Gamania Digital Entertainment 2 Other payables 7,575 Note -%
Co., Ltd.
2 Gamania Digital Entertainment Gamania Digital Entertainment 2 Other payables 12,138 Note -%
(H.K.) Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
2 i Gamania Digital Entertainment 3 Other receivables 21,224 Note 1%
(U.S.) Co., Ltd.
3 Gamania Digital Entertainment Gamania Digital Entertainment 2 Other payables 5,545 Note -%
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
4 Gamania Digital Entertainment Gamania Digital Entertainment 3 Other payables 21,224 Note 1%
(U.S.) Co., Ltd. (H.K.) Co., Ltd.
5 Playcoo Co. Gamania Digital Entertainment 3 Sales revenue 21,798 Note 2%
Labuan Holding, Ltd.
5 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment 3 Accounts receivable 13,476 Note -%
Labuan Holding, Ltd.
6 Gamania Digital Entertainment Gamania Digital Entertainment 3 Sales revenue 24,145 Note 2%
Labuan Holding, Ltd. (Japan) Co. Ltd.
6 ” Playcoo Co. 3 Purchases 21,798 Note 2%
6 4 Gamania Digital Entertainment 3 Accounts receivable 7,563 Note -%
(Japan) Co. Ltd.
6 7 Playcoo Co. 3 Accounts payable 13,476 Note %




Transactiemts

Percentage of total

Number Relationship Transaction combined revenue or
(Note 1) Name of counterparty Name of transaction parties (Note 2) Subject Amount terms total assets (Note 3)
7 G%naar;ﬁ)%%ti'tgmertalnmem Gamania Dlglta.| Entertainment 3 Purchases 24,145 Note 4 2%
p - L. Labuan Holding, Ltd.
7 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment 3 Accounts payable 7,563 Note 4 -%

Labuan Holding, Ltd.

Note 1: The transaction information of the Compang its consolidated subsidiaries should be netediumn “Number”. The number means:

Note 2:

Note 3:
Note 4:
Note 5:

1. Number O represents the Company.

2. The consolidated subsidiaries are in order fnomber 1.

The relationships with the transactioniparare as follows:

1. The Company to the consolidated subsidiary.

2. The consolidated subsidiary to the Company.

3. The consolidated subsidiary to another clhsted subsidiary.

Ratios of asset/liability accounts aredidd by consolidated total assets, and ratios ditfioes accounts are divided by consolidated sadgsnue.

There is no similar transaction to compaith. It will follow the agreed price and transact terms.

The disclosure standard reaches above G50®he transaction amount.
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12.OPERATING SEGMENTS INFORMATION

(1) General information
Management has determined the operating segmeses! fwa the reports reviewed by the
chief operating decision-maker which are used tkensdrategic decisions.

(2) Assessment of segment information
The chief operating decision-maker assesses therpemce of the operating segments
based on net income or net loss of the reportimgge

(3) Information on segment profit (loss), assets leabilities
The segment information on reportable segmentsigedvto the chief operating decision-
maker for the three-month periods ended March @112nd 2010 are as follows:

For the three-month
period ended
March 31, 2011

Revenue from
external customers

Inter-segment
revenue

Segment profit (loss)

Gamania Digital
Entertainment
Co., Ltd.

Gameastor Digital
Entertainment
Co., Ltd

Others Total

1,248,30% 218,150 $ 382,934 % 1,849,387

1,479
129,764

2,760)
4359 (

48,620
50,355)

47,339
129,720

Depreciation and
amortization (
Income tax expense (

70,700) (
41,054)

26,862) (
516) (

28,887) (
10,392)

126,449)
51,962)

Investment income (Note)
(loss) accounted for
under the equity
method (

52,572) - 1,185

Segment assets - - -

For the three-month
period ended
March 31, 2010

Gamania Digital
Entertainment
Co., Ltd.

Gameastor Digital
Entertainment
Co., Ltd

Others

1,492)

Total

Revenue from
external customers

Inter-segment
revenue

Segment profit (loss)

Depreciation and
amortization
Income tax expense

Investment income
(loss) accounted for
under the equity
method

Segment assets

$ 985,414

1,104
109,841

71,727) (
( 38,272

32,980)

$

802
8,055

23,214) (
865)

=m,5 $

(

(

269,923

078,
24,614)

6,349)
6,867)

2,191

$

(

(

(

1,395,887

74,954
112,265

101,290)

46,004)
(Note)

1,025)

Note The inter-segment investment income or loss leas eliminated.

(4) Reconciliation information of segment profibgk), assets and liabilities

The segment reports provided to the chief operatiagision-maker are measured in a
manner consistent with that used for the incomestants. There is no difference between
the presentation of segment report and incomerstteand accordingly, no reconciliation
is required to be disclosed.



